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1. Name ot Propertv

historic name Backer and scharfer Store Buiiding

other names/site numper N/A

2. Location

strest & number 1002-10U4 Wnite Rock Avenue N/A not _ror puplication
ClTY, town Waukesha N/A vicinity
state Wisconsin code Wl county _Waukesha code 133 Z1lp Coge H31db

3. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property No. ot Resources within Propercy
_X_ private _X building(s) contributing noncontribputing
;__ public-local ___district 1 _ __ buildings
—__ public-State _____site —_— ____sites
____ public-Federal ___ structure _— ____ structures
____ object - objects

i _0 _ Total

Mame of related multiple property listing: No. of contriputing resources

previously listed in the
None : National Register 0




4. Stags/wegeral Agency Lertirication

A3 the de31gnated AWTHOYITY URAer The NAGlonal H1STOr1C Preservatlon ACT ot L4ob,
as amended, [ herepy certity that tnis _X nomination ___request for determination
ot eligipility meets the documentation standards for registering properties 1in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set rforth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property _X meets

does not meet the National Register criteria. See continuation sheect.
,@«-—, : ¥ 15/25
- e - . .- . . o A\S v
Signa dérfﬁtylng otficial Date

Historic Preservation Ofricer-W{

Stdte or Federal agency and bureau

Iin my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register
criteria. See continuation sheect,
Signacture of commenting or other orticiai bate

State or Federal agency anda bureau

yd

2. Nafionai barx Service (ertitrication

L, pfrepy, certiry that this property is:

entered in the National Register.
See continuation sheet

- L L . , Entered in tie
___ determined eliqgible for the National National Registern

Register. See continuation sheet

determined not eligibie for the
National Register.

removed from the National Register.

other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date
6. Functions or Use
Historic Functions Current Kunctions
(enter categories from instructions) (enter categories from instructions)

COMMERCE/'TRADE/specialty store COMMERCE/TRADE/specialty store




7. Description

Arcnitectyral €lassircication Materials
(enter categories trom instructions) (enter categorles trom instructions)
founaation stone
Late Vvictorian walls weatherboara
root Aspnalt
other wood

Descripe present ana h1sStoric physlcal appearance.

The Becker & Schater store Builaing is a nignly intact two-story rectilinear plan
Boomtown torm rrame construction bullding that was built as a general store with 3
£lat apove ca.lsy5. ‘he store's proprietors, John A. Becker and William F. Schater,
puilt their new puilaing 3t the intersection or kKast Main Street ana white RoOCK
Avenue; an important junction that is also a halt a block east or the point of
intersection of k. Main sStreet ana kast Avenue and & halit DLoCKk west trom its
intersection with PLeasant Street. The sTore was built on a vacant Lot and was
intenadea to cater to tne already well-estaplished residential aistrict that
surrounded 1tT. $charer operatea the store ln partnership witn Becker and later wit
seorqe Balzer, who purchased the store (but not the puilaing) witn nis son, Warren
Baizer, in 1947. The Balzers operated the business as a compination grocery and dry
goods store until the tate 1Y50s. Schater, meanwnlle, continuea to own the building
until nhis deatn in 14Y5L, ana his widow owned it untii 1960, when she sold it to
others. ‘The first story is still operatea as a grocery store today ana the
apartment apove has been continuously occupied since the buiiding was puilt. The
exterior or the building is almost complietely original and the interior or the store
still retains 1ts orlginal lavout ana its origlna:i ceiling and filoor. The Becker
and Schater builaing is now the last commercial puilding in the h1sToric center or
the city of Wauxkesnha tnat stiil retains 1Ts oridinal clappeara-coversa exterior.

At the time tne store bullaing was built waukesna enjoyea a national reputation as a
summer resort due to 1tS assiduous promotion of the nealth-giving properties of tne
local spring waters. 'this promotion pegan in (86% and its success led to the
construction Of numerous large hotels throughout the city ana caused the local
population to increase trom 25U0 1n 187U to 874U by 1910. By the turn-of-the-
century, however, the ecONOmiC lmportance ot the city's resort trade beqgan to
decline and numerous Ma3nutacTuring CONCErNS were created to take its piace,
transforming the city's economic base. This transformation, coupled with waukesha's
close proximity to the city of Milwaukee, greatly increased Wwaukesha's population,
wnich by 1980 numpered 53,941, making it Wisconsin's eignth-largest city. This
transtormation has aiso been accompanied by the gradual demolition of most of the
city's nineteenth century trame construction commercial buildings. Today only a tew
handful of these buildings survive and the Becker and schafer building is the only
one in the downtown area that retains its original appearance.

white Rock Avenue and East Main Street have historically been two of Waukesha's
principal northeast side thoroughfares and they still retain this distinction
today. The west end of the northeast-southwest running White KRock Avenue begins
directly in front of the Becker and Schafer store. East Main Street begins three
blocks away in the heart of the commercial downtown core of the city and continues
east past its junction with White Rock Avenue on its way out of the city as CTH Y.
This historically important junction is also less than half a block east of the
intersection of the east-west running East Main Street and the equally important

X_ See continuation sheet
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north-west running kast Avenue, which was the east pboundary ot the original plat of
the city. fThe White Rock Avenue-E. Main Street junction is also half a block trom
the Uld Waukesha County Courthouse (101 W. Main Street, 1885, NRHP - 3/27/75) and
the Becker and Scharer store building 1s aimost Qirectly across the street rrom tne
St. Mathias Episcopa: Church (11l E. Main streec, 1851, NRHp - 10/28/83).

The neighborhood 1n which the store 1s situated is located two Diocks east of the
central business district or waukesha ana the topegraphy in this vicinity is
generaily tlat except wnere 1T SLODEesS Qown TO tne ¥ox River pehina tne store. This
neignpornood was an eariv resicentlat district in the Clty, DUT Cnanging usade has
transtormed 1t from an area Ot Single famlly nomes TO One where renters
pregominate. A numper of The 1MDOrTanT yueen Anne style houses tnat once dotted
TNlS ares sST1l:i survive, however, DErTlCUiariy aiong kast Avenue, and several
Important relliglous lnscitutlons inciuaing St. Mathias Episcopal ana st. Josepn
tatnolic Churcn contlnue to make the neignporhooa their nome.

'ne store was originally piaced at the tronC of a 4>-foot-wide by L3U-foort-deep
trapezoical-shaped Lot that is Located on the westeriy side ot white RocKk Avenue at
the point wnere the Avenue turns ort from East Main Streec (the original lot is now
incorporated into a larger parcel). This lot faces the intersection ot the two
streets and the rear of the Lot once contained a one-story frame garage. Uriginaily,
there were also a two-story dwelling and another store located on either sice ot
this lot. Neither of these buildings are now extant, however, and the surface area
ot that portion of the lot not cccupied by the store has recently peen compietely
blacktopped tor parking, as have both the lots on either side of it.

The Becker & Schater store is a free-standing frame construction two-story building
having a rectilinear plan ana painted clapboard-covered exterior walls that rest on
ashlar Waukesha limestone foundation walls. Although the entire building was built
at one time, its side elevations are divided into two separate sections, a 24-foot-
wide by 60-feet-deep two-story gable-rootfed front section and a 24-foot-wide by 35-
foot-deep two-story sloping roofed rear section. Both sections have limestone
foundation walls, but those ot the front section enclose a tull basement story that
is floored in concrete, while those ot the rear section enclose a crawl space.
Several courses of the foundation wall stone are visible above grade.

The two-story main facade abuts the concrete sidewalk that parallels White Rock
Avenue. This facade faces southeast and is 24-feet-wide, and its asymmetrically
designed first story is framed by wood cornerboards and by a molded wood lintel that
spans the width of the facade. Most of the width or this story is covered by a
conventionally organized three-part storefront that has large display window
openings on either side of a slightly canted, deeply inset centered entrance, aill
these elements being framed by simple wood casings. ‘'he wooden landing of this
entrance is reached by ascending three concrete steps and the entrance is still
filled with its original pair of one-light over two-panel painted wood entrance
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doors. ‘These doors are surmountea by & one-light transom and they still have their
original nardaware. ‘fhis entrance is tflanked py large unegqual-sizea display winaow
openings. vanelied bulkheads are piaced below each ot the display window openings.
The openings are now tliled with Danes Or varylng Sizes That nave repliaced the large
original single i1ignts. 'I'he left-hana portion or the first STOrLY CONSisSts of a
smail tour-panel wooaen entrance door surmounted py a single-light transom. Ulhis
aoor opens onto a staircase that leads up to the second story apartment. With tne
exception of the aliterea but easily restored display window openings, all or these
eliements are totally originat.

The moided wood iintel that spans the base ot the clapboard-sided secona story of
the ma:in tacade has dent:iculated wooden ornamentition placed below 1t and its ends
are each decorated with a small woocen bracket. The seconc story 1s symmetrical in
dasiqgn ana three-bays-wide and each bay consists of a single flat-arched window
opening that contains a one-over-one-light double hung wooaen sash window. Eaca
opening is simply entramed with fiat casings and the openings nave wooaen sSills.
The uppermost portion ot this facace consists of a bracketed wooden cornice tnat nas
a large triangular pediment centered on it. Tnis pediment is decoratea with a
radiating sunpurst aesign and it covers the main gable end or the simpie gaple roo:s
that covers the front section of the store. This roof has slightliy overnanging
83ves, a ricdgerine that runs from northwest to southeast, and slopes tnat are
sheathed 1in asphalt snlngies.

The two side elevations of the store are each 95-feet 1n length, asymmetrical 1in
design, and are divided 1into b0-tfoot-long front sections and 395-foot-iong rear
sections by a simple vertical wocaen strip. The tenestration plans of these
elevations and the rear elevation appear to have been determined largely by
functional needs. ‘'he northeast-tfacing side elevation is four-pays-wide as definea
by second story window openings. The second story otf the longer three-pay-wide
gapble~rooted lert-hand section consists or three flat-arched window copenings, eacn
of whicnh is filled with a tnree-over-one-iignt flat-archea double hung window that
admits light to the secona story apartment. These windows, like all or the store's
other winaows, are flat-arcned, have wooden sash, wooden sills, ana simple wood
casings. ‘he first story wall surtface below is broken only Dy a singie small square
fiat-arched window opening located towards the rear between the second and third
bays tfrom the lett. A small cream brick chimney shaft is also placed on the peak ot

the roof in a position above the first bay from the left.

The shorter right section of this elevation is surmounted by a rearward-sloping
composition roof and it is even less densely fenestrated than the front section. A
parapet wall with a single step hides its slightly sloping roof. The second story
window opening that fills the fourth bay is located below the left-hand step and
contains a single one-over-one-light double hung window. The only openings in the
first story of this section consist of two small square flat-arched window openings
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that are located on either side of the bay in the story above and that are also in
line with the other one alreaay mentioned.

The rear or northwest-facing elevation of tne store is also Z24-feet-wide and it too
is symmetrical in design. A single one-over-one-lignt double hung window 1s
centereq on the second story and a smatler square window is placed in the flrst
story directly below. This elevation is otherwlse unornamented ana its clappoarad
siding is enframed by cornerpoards, a watartable, and a wider cornice in the same
manner as the store's other elevations.

The Y95-root-iong southwest-tacing side elevation 1S eignt-nays-wide DUt it 1S
essent:ially idencicai TC tne NCrtneast-tacing e.levation 1n 1TS asymmeTricatlty anc
renestration and LTS lengotn is aiso divicea inca & #5-fooc-Liong rear section anag =
b-foot-iong tront section. ‘he sscond story or the tirst pay trom the left

ontains a single window opening tnat is fillea with & one-over-one lignt double
nung window and there 1s 3 smail sguare window opening in tne STory below. A secand

3(‘)

Smail square rirst story window opening is piaced In the ssconc bay and a ti
STOry sice entrance door opening titled with a thnree-pane.l Qoor surmeunted Dy a
riliea transom 1s located just to the riqnt and it 3aputs tne vertical wood strip
that separates tne front section from the rear. A double 4Qoor opening occuples tae
tnird bay trom tne letr and tne tourtn, fifcn, SixXth, &and seventh bays Consists of
tour tlat-arcneq Seconc STOry wWindow Openings that are each filled with one-over-one
lignht double nung windows that light the second story apartment. A singie small
square window opening 1is placed between pays five and six in the first story and tae
eighth bay from the letft consists of a singie first story door opening that contains
a four-panel wooa door. This elevation is then terminated vertically in the same
manner as the northeast-facing elevation.?®

H
r'l

lnterior

The interior of the first story retail space still retains its original board
flooring and its wooden matchboard ceiling, but all the original store fixtures have
been replaced with more modern units and the walls have been covered with these
units or with wallboard. The second story contains a two-bedroom apartment that has
a living room, a dining room, and a kitchen, but this apartment was not seen auring

the course of the research.

The interior of the Becker and Schafer Store building is in reasonable condition
considering that it has been in continuous use for nearly a century. The exterior,
however, is still in almost totally original condition today and it has one of the
least altered commercial vernacular tform facades in the city. ‘

+ ALl tne small square-shaped rirst story window openings originally lit the store
interior, but they are now filled with either painted wood panels or with air-

conditioning units.
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Areas ot Signiticance
(entar categories from instructions) Period ot Significance significant Dates
Architecture c3.139Y ca.l895%
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Yeas ana periods ot signiricance notea above.
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signiticsnce

Tne Becker and Schater Store building is peing nominatea to the National Register ot
Historic Places (NRHP) for its local significance under National Register (NR)
criterion C. More specitically, the store is being nominated peciuse 0Ot 1its
associations with the NR significance area of Architecture, a theme that 15 also
identified in the state of Wisconsin's Cultural Resource Manzgement Plan (CRMP}.
Research centered on the Vernacular Commercial torm subsection of tne Architectural
Styles study unit of the CEMP and the Architecture Theme section of the final report
of the Waukesnha Intensive Survey. The results of tnis researcn is detailed below
and confirms that tie Beczer ana Schater Store Bullaing is locally signiticant under
criterion C as a distinctive example of Boomtown form design as applied to a typica:
late ninetesnth century retail store. ‘The store is also believed to be locally
significant under criterion C because it is by far the most intact of the very few
nineteenth century trame construction, clapboara-sided commercial buildings that
still exists in the downtown section of a city that once contained many such

buildings.

The Becker and Schater Store Building was built at the intexrsection ot White Rock
Avenue and K3st Main Street ca.l8Y5 tor Jonn A. Becxer and William ¥. Schater.
Schater initiaily operatea the first story dry goods and grocery store with Becker
and later with George Balzer, to whom he sold tne business in 1Y47. Subseguently,
Balzer operated the store until his own death in 1456, and a grocery store is still

being operated there by the present owner.

2 The precise date of construction of the store is unknown since surviving tax
records and city directories are incomplete for this period. The Waukesha city
directories, however, first list the Becker and Schafer business in 1895-1896 and
there are no earlier listings. Furthermore, the building is listed on the 1896 Tax
Rolls, while the map of the city in the Waukesha County Plat Book published in 1891,
shows that this was the only lot along this stretch at that date without a

building.
__X_See continuation sheet
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Historv

A genera. history ot the city ot Waukesna is contained in both the final report of
tne Waukesna Intensive survey? and in the text of tne Historic Resources of Waukesha
Multipie Resource Nomination form.* Consequently, the following nistory deals
mostiy with development in the area immediately surrounding the store and with tne
peopie who puilt the puilcing and ran the store.

Waukesha, like every other community of any size in Wisconsin pegun
nineteentn ana early twentietn centuries, originaily haa its retail
concentrated in the center ot the city. As the residential neiqhborn 0o0ds around tne
center qrew, however, new buildings housing essential retaill activities had tTo be
eracted to serve tne needs Of NOMEOWNErsS whno tound tnemseives locateg outside ot
walking distance rrom the city center. ‘this patctern still holas true togsy, and
comprsnensive lanag use zcnlng 135 used COo group these new duilaings togetner along
major thoroughrares. In the nineteanth anc early twentieth centuries, thougn,
before the automob:i:le treed people trom shepping near thelr piaces or residence,
retall store puildings tenaed to be DuUliT wherever the need existed. ‘‘his pattern
is most commoniy opserved in larger communities, where such stores were once to oe
founc in all but the wealthiest nelghborhoods; wnose residents hacd goods daelivered.

Since the 1ntersection Orf WniTe ROCX Avenue ana kast Main Street 1s oniy two DL0CKS3
235T 0t the Nistoric commercial center or Wwaukesha, it is propable tnat persons
tiving 1n the residential neignborhoods surrounding the intersection were adequately
served by exlsting downtown stores bDetore the Becker and schater store was
constructed. £[n 1843, though, much of tnhe land located behind the store ana betwesn
White Rock Avenue and the Fox River to the northwest was platted into lots by
Patrick J. Buckley as P. J. Buckiey's Subdivision No. 2, creating a new residential
neighborhood in the vicinity ot the intersection. '"The following year, Buckley built
his own house a block away from the future site of the store at 110l Buckley Street
{NRHP - 2/28/91 and it possible that the presence ot still more famities in the
vicinity of the intersection created a retail sales opportunity in the neighporhood

that had not existed betore.

Becker and Schafer's new building was constructed at the intersection of White Rock
Avenue and East Main Street around 1895 and the general merchandise store the two
men ran in the first story of the building apparently filled a genuine need for such
a store in this area since it operated until the late 1950s. Little is known about

3 Howard, Needles, Tammen, and Bergendoff. Spring City's Past: A Thematic Histor
of Waukesha and the Final Report ot Waukesha's Intensive Resources Survey. Howard,
Neeales, Tammen, and Bergendoff, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 1982.

* [bid. Historic Resources of Waukesha Muitiple Resource Nomination form.
September, 1982. On file at the State Historical Society ot Wisconsin, Historic
Preservation Division, Madison, Wisconsin.
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John A. Becker, but a very similar anc now-demolished trame construction grocery
store that was located a rew blocks away at 421 N. Hartwell Ave. and constructed
Ca.Ll¥85 1s said to have peen pullt by a man named John Hecker. Whether these TWo
men were one anc the same, however, 1S not Xnown.® Jonn A. Becker's partner in tne
new store was William Freag Schater (187Ll-1i4951l). Scnater was born in the fown otf
Pewaukee 1n Waukesha County and &pDarantly moved tO wauxesha Just a tew years bDet
opening his store on White Rocx Avenue. City airectories suggest that he ana Bec
ran the store together as the rirm ot Hecxer ana schater untii abeut L9035, atrter
wnicn cime sScnarer ran it nimselr uncger hls own name. bLurihg tnis time Scharer a.so
acgulired Becker's share or pDotn the business and the bullding, making him sole

propriecor.

0
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Around 147U, Scnater tTeoX on George H. Haizer as a partner in the store. Balzer
{1880-1956) was born in Waukesha and he joined in partnership witn Schater in the
new tirm of Schater and Company. 'he two men continuec in partnership until ty47,
when Balzer bought the store in conjunction with his son, Warren Schafer. The new
tirm was called Balzer ane Son and an article in the iocal paper written several

years later haa the tollowing description of their firm.

The elder Balzer worked i1n partnersnip in the store with W. ¥. Schater when the
business was known as Scnaier & co. Schafer constructed the building more than 2>

years ago.

Balzer became associated with Scharer 30 years ago and worked as a partner with
the latter until 1947 wnen he and his son Warren purchased the business as a

partnership.

Today the father and son team offers a tull line of groceries in aadition to a drv
goods department. Bolts of cloth, dresses, men's wear, women's undergarments ,
intants wear, curtains and other types or yard goods are available in the dry

goods department.

The fuil line ot groceries includes tresh truits and vegetables and trozen toods.
A variety of cold cuts and a limited amount of fresh meat sucnhn as pork roast and
ground beef are available trom the meat market section of the business.

Schater, meanwhile, continued to own the pbuilding until his death in 1951.7 His
widow, Mrs. Lydia Schater, then inherited 1t and she kept it until 1900, when 1t was
sold to others. George H. Balzer ran the store until his death in 1956, and by LYol
the store had become Manuel's Radio and TV Service.® The proprietor ot the new

® Waukesha Freeman. "Muehl May Move Store." August 22, 1963.
6 Ibid. "Meet Your Merchant." November 18, 1952.
7 Ibid. "Veteran Grocery Store Owner Dead." July 25, 1951. Obituary of William

Fred Schafer.
@ Ibid. January 21, 1956. Obituary of George H. Balzer.



NP5 Korm LO-490ta

(Hev., 4-46]

Wisconsin Word 2rocesgsor ¥ormat
Approvea 2/87

Leq S5Tates DeparTment or the lnterior
L vark service

NATLIUNAL REGLSYER OF HISTORLIC PLACES

CONTINUATION SHEET

gecker and Scnater Store suilding, Waukesha, Weukesna County, wisconsin
Section numper 8 Page 3

business, Manuel O. Oyervides, ran 1t untll the eariy LY98Us, wnhen he cnanged the
ousiness 1nto & grocery stQre speclaiizing in Mexlcan toods named La tienda
Mexicana. This business is still being carried on in the store today, nearly a
century atter the tirst greocery store opened £or business.

Arcnitecture

The Becker and Schaetfer Store Bullcing is arcnitecturally signiticant at the local
ievel as a distincrtive, highly intact example orf the Boom Town form; & vernacular
pbuilding torm wnose importance in wisconsin architectural nistory is rinally peing
recognized. 'fhe sSTore was built ca.idyd by an unknown bulider who may have designac
The storz himsel:f or used already preparasd plans and modified them to suit.

Wnatever the source, the overall design of the store was certainly well within tns
capabilities of 3 smail-town carpentar ot that aay. Why the store was designed
using tne HBoom Town form rather than one of the other similar vernacuiar forms ot
the day such as the gaple-front rorm :s conjectural although it is possipie that nc
other competing vernacular rorm was as SUCCesSstul as the Boom own torm in providing
a builaing or urpan appearance at SO little cost. Whatever the reascn, the store
successtully rerlects the deslire ot 1Ts owners to Create a subpstancial and
imprassive public image £or thelr commerci2l enterprise.

Although the subsection of tne Vernacuiar Forms sStudy unit ot tne CRMPY dealing witnh
thne Hoom ''own zorm has not yet been published, there are surticient sources
avallable whicnh deal with the forms' stylistic aspects to permit conciusions to be
arawn about 1ts most 1important features. OUne ot tne most accessibie or these
sources is the book American VYernacuiar Desian,ty70-1440 written by Herbert
Gotrrried and Jan Jennings in 1985. ‘their listing ot the typical characteristics Or
the form (which they call the "talse-tront" tform) describes a building which is
typically one-to two-stories in heignt; has a wood trame claa most typically in
clapboard; and has a principal facade wnich is either two-or three-pays-wide. The
most characteristic feature ot the form is the vertical extension of the front wall
above the roof to "Create the illusion that the building is targer and taller than
it really is."® This extension (or talse-front) "Does not conform to the root
shape" and "The false portion extends the facade vertically and horizontally so that
the root over the main body--most often a gable or flat roof--remains hidden from
view. ... On one-story buildings the false portion does not extend much beyond the
apex of the gable; the extra section of wall provides ornamentation, with an
elaborate cornice built on the front or functions as a signboard. In most cases the
false front has been integrated into the facade so that cornerbeards, columns, or
pilasters are carried up the front ... .*°® The authors also note that the
decorative cornice usually features brackets and is otten made of wood with sheet

metal trim and that the

? Gotttried, Herbert and Jan Jennings. American Vernacular Design, 1870-1940.
New York, 1Y¥5, pg. LlSe.
+0 1bid, pg. 244.
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windows on tne main facade usually have a symmetrical fenestration pattern and are
either 1/1 or 2/2 light.

The apove gescr:iption, aithouagn intendec as a dgenerai one Dy The 3uthors, mMAtTCREs

the appearance ot the Becger and Schaeter store Bullaing in every particular, even
down to the bracxets ana the wood trim on the cornice. 'fhus, the store appears to
be a virtual textboox example Or the Boom 'own f£orm.

I'n1e spatiai Limits or the Joom lown (taise-front) torm are 21so proadly delineateag
py Gortrtrried and Jennings wno note tnat ailthougn the form is DODUL3rly associlatead
W1TD the wWestern statses, 1T 15 1n t3CT round "iln upstate New Yory as weil 38 1in
Lowa, Ywexas, Coloraao, and wyoming."**+ presentliy, tnhne LacK of consolicatac
Information reqgsraing TNis fOrm Drevents generaiizing on the rreguency Or 1T3
occurrence in Wisconsin even tnougn winashlela surveys uncerctaxen oy tnae starte
Historic Preservation Division have round numerous examples 1n every section oL tne
state. MNever-the-less, a w.ndshieia survey of thne City 0oL Wauxesna undertaken ror

this nomination founa no other example of the form in the city.

The significance of the Becker and Schaeter building is considerably enhanced Dy 1t
virtually original condition. {ts highly intact main tacade and its egually intact
side ana rear elevations also maxe tne Becxer and Schater Store builiging one of the
most intact of the very tew smalier trame constructlon, clapboara-sidec commercial
buildings that still remain in Waukesna. Such buildings were once a common Signt ia
Waukesha and in most other Wisconsin communities as well, put they are now
threatened by cnanges in the economics of retailing and by problems attencant in
maintaining buildings that were orten cheaply built to begin with ana that are now
nearing the end of their life spans. Of the many such buildings that once existead
within the boundaries ot turn-of-the century Waukesha, the Becker and schater Sstore
building is now the oniy one that still retains its unaltered original appearance.
Most of the others have either been demolished, Like the front-gabled store on W.
Hartwell Avenue that was mentioned earlier, or they have been unsympathetically
remodeled ana resided.** Nominating the Becker and Schafer Store Builaing to the
NRHP is thus intended to further the understanding ana appreciation of the remaining
buildings of this type in waukesna. [n addition, it 1S hopea that being placea on
the NRHP will help the present owners protect and conserve tne building itself. The
Becker and Schater store Building is now surrounded py parking lots ana it is
located in an area that is being subjected to increasingiy intense redevelopment

pressure.

+1 Gottfriea, Herbert ana Jan Jennings. Op. Cit., pg. 244.

12 waykesha Freeman. "Six Buildings Removed to Provide Space for butchland
Dairy." December 3L, LY65. This story contains a picture ot the building at 4Z1 N.
Hartwell Avenue (originally Crescent Avenue) that is alleged to have been built by
John Becker ca.ls85. The general resemblance to the later puilaing that is the

subject of this nomination is clear.
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The arcnitectural significance of tne Becker and Schafer Store Building lies 1in i
peing an excellent, nighly intact, representative example of the soomtown Iorm OL
design as applied to a small-scale nineteanth century gdeneral mercnanaise store.
The store has a numper Ot teatures sSuch as a wooa frame ctad mostly in clapboara, a
principal facade that is three-bays-wide, ana a vertical extension of the front wall
above the roof to "Create the illusion that the building 1s larger and taller than
it really is," that are each characteristic teatures of the form as described by
Gottiried and Jennings.*® <Conseguently, the Becker ana Schater Store builaeing 1s
believed to be of local architectural significance as a prototypical example of a
late nineteenth century Beoomtown form building, a building type tnat was once a
common site in Waukesha and =lsewnere in Wisconsin.

13 Gottfried, Herbert and Jan Jennings. Op. Cit., pg. 244.
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GotTrrieg, Herpert and Jan Jennings. America 1 iqr JU-194y. New
Yorx, 1935,

Previous documentation on file (NPS): X See continuation sheet
preliminary determinat:on of
individuat listing (36 CFR 67)
has been resquested

previously listed in the National Primary location ot additional aata:
Regiscter { State Historic preservation oftice
previously determined eligible by Other state agency
the National Register . _Federal agency
____designatea a Nationa:i Historic Local government
Lanamark _____University
recoraed by Historic American Other
Buildings Survey # Specify repository:

recorcea by Historic American
Enginesring record #
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See continuation sheet

Verbal Houndary bescription

Now part of Lots 75, 76 & 77, baniel Wells Jr. Plat (of the City ot Waukesha). NW=
Section 2 T6N RI9E. Originally part of Lots 75 and 76, which consisted mostly of
Lot 76 and a small strip ot 75.

See continuation sheet

Boundary Justitfication

The above boundaries enclose all that land historically associated with the Becker
and Schafer Store Building.

See continuation sheet

1l. FKorm Prepared By
name/title Timothy F. Heggland/Consultant

for: City Plan Commission, City of Waukesha

organization 201 Delarfield Street Waukesha Wl date September 24, 19972

street & number 1311 Morrison Street telephone (608) 251-9450

city or town Madison State Wil zip code _53703
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